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" UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF HAWATI

. U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES

; |
TRADING COMMISSION, ) Civil ActionNo. _ - , , , ‘
Plaintiff, ) -
) COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE
v. ) RELIEF, CIVIL MONETARY
_ ) PENALTIES, AND OTHER
PATRICK RAKOTONANAHARY, ) EQUITABLE RELIEF ;
and CYBER MARKET GROUP, ) SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION -
LLC, | )
| | )
Defendants. )
)




~ Plaintiff U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“Commission”)
alleges as follows: |
I. SUMMARY

| | 1. Since at least June 18, 2008, aﬁd continuing through the presént
| (“Réievant Periéd’"), defen_dants Patrick Rakotona.nahary (“Rakotonanahary™) and
Cyber Market Group LLC (“Cyber”) (collectively, “Défe’ndants”) directly and
tﬁrough fheir officers, emﬁloyees_.énd agents, have fraudulently solicited money

from members of the geneﬁl 'pub'lic for the pufpose of trading oﬂ'—exchange
foreign currency contracts (“forex™). o

2. Proposed Defendants offered -a “Promissory Progfam” in which Cyber
- clients loaned funds to Cyber and Defendants; in m, used Cybé_r clients’ funds to
trade forex; Cyber clients Qere -;told that they would. accrue interest on their loans
: that would be paid from -Cyb'er’s purported successful fbrexltrading.

3. In solicit_ingrpro‘spective clients, Defendénts; directly and thi'ough
others, méde the following fraﬁdulent misrepresentations and omissions, among
others: (a) promising weekly and/or monthly returns of from 4 to 10%, knowing

) that they lacked the funds to _maké_ these payments; (b) falself reprgsenting to |
| clients that these returns were Based on profitable forex,tradin.g;.(c) failingto -

| ~ inform clients that their returns were paid from the client’s own funds and/or the



funds depositod by other clients; (d) falsely claiming that they had not lost money

trading forex in seven years; and (e) failing adequately to disclose the risks of

- trading forex..

4. Upon information and belief, Defendants operated a “Ponzi’ scheme by

| paYihg so-called returns to clients with those clients’ own money or the money of

o

other clients. In doing so, Defendants misappropriated funds.’
5. Defendénts also misappropriated client funds for personal use.

6 Proposed Defendants dlstnbuted statements to clients that falsely stated

- that Cyber had client funds totaling in excess of $8 million.

7. By virtue of this conduct and the further conduct described herein,
Defendants have engaged, are engaging, or are about to engage in acts and
practices in violation of the anti-fraud provisions of Sections 4b_(a)(2)(A)-(C) of the

Commodity Exchange-Act (“CEA”‘or “Act”) as amended -by. the Food,

Conservation, and Energy Act of 2008, Pub. L. No. 110-246, Title XIII (the CFTC

Reauthorization Act of 2008 (“CRA™)), § 13102', 122 Stat. 1651 (enacted June 18,

 2008), to be codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(@)2)(A)-(C)).

8. Rakotonanahary is liable under Section 13(b) of the Act, 7 U.S.C.

- § 13¢c(b) (2006), as a controlling person of Cyber for its violations of the Act,



| bécause he did not act in good faith or knowingly induc'ed; directly or inc!ireétly, |
the acts constituting the irioIations.A | |
9. Rakotqnanahary and 'ot‘her Cyber employees, officers and agents |
committed the acts aﬂeged herein within the course and scope of their
employment, office or agency at Cyber. Therefore, Cybér is liable pursuant to
Section 2(a)(1)(B) of the Act, 7U.S.C. § 2(aj(1)(B)(20_06), and Comfnission
H Regulation (“Regulation”) 1.2, 17 CFR§ 1.2 (2009), as a principél forits
employees’, agents’, and/or officers’ violation of the Act.
10, Accor_dingly; pursuant to Sections '6c(a) and 6d of the Act, 7 U.S.C.'
§§ 13a-i, 13a-2 (2006), and Section 2(c}(2)(C)(i)-(iii) of the Act as amended by
. the CRA, to bf; cﬁ_odiﬁedat 7 U.S.C. §_2(c)(2)(C)(i)-(iii), the Commission brings
 this action to enjoin the unlanﬁJl -acts and practices of Deféndants, to compel their
- compliance with the provisions of the Act, and to enjoin them from engaging in
certain commodity related acﬁvities. In addition, Plaintiff seeks both prelimiﬁary

and permanent injuncfive relief, civil monetary p'enalt'ies" and remedial ancillary

~ reliefincluding, but not limited to, trading and registration bans, re'stitution,

 disgorgement, pre- and post-judgment interest, and such other equitable relief as

the Court may deem necessary or appropriate.



- 11. Unless restrained and enjoined by this Court, Defend_ants are likely to
continue to engage in the acts and practices alleged in this Complaint and similar
acts and practices, as more fully deécribe_d below.

| IL

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

'12. Section 6c(a) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1 (2006), authorizes the
Coxﬁmiésion to seek injunctive relief against any person whenever it shall appear
to the Cqmmissiqn that. such person has engaged, is engaging, or is about to engage
in any act or practice constituting a violation of any provision of the Act or_anj
'rule, regulation or order thereunder.

13. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 6c(a) of
the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1 (2006). |

14, Section 2(c)(2)(C)(i)-(iii) of the Act as amended by CRA, to be
'c_odiﬁed at7 U.S.C. § 2(c)(2)(C)(i)-(iii), provides jurisdiction to the Commission
~and makes- the Act applicable to certain forex transactions.

15. Venue properly lies with the Court pursuant to Sectlon 6c(e) of the Act,
| 7USC. § 13a-1(e) (2006), in that the Defendants transact business in thls Dlstnct,. |
| and certain of the transactions, acts pract:ces, and courses of business alleggd ,

occurred, are occurring, or are about to occur in this District.



IIL
THE PARTIES

A.  Plaintiff

- 16. The U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission is an independent
federal regulatory agency that is charged by Congress with responsibility for
administering and enforcing the provisions of the Act as amendéd by_the' CRA, to
be codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 1 ét seq. (2006), and the Regulations promulgated
thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §§ 1.1 et seq. (2009). |
B. Defendants |

17. Cyber Market Group LLCisa Floridalimite_d liability company,
- formed in J. anuafy 2005 and’ actively fegistered to do business in Florida. Cybei'
| 6peljates out of Punta Gorda, Florida.. Cyb'er'has never been registered w1th the
‘Commission in any capacity and is not a member of a futures association registere,d ,
“under the Act. Cyber_is not a financial 'institution, régis‘tered broker dealer, |
- insﬁrgnc;company, financial hol'ding.company, or investment bank holding
bompany, and is not an associated person of such entities. Upon infonnatipn aﬁd
Belief, Cyber is not an “eligible contract particij)ant” and at least ébme, if not all, of --.
Cyber’s clients are not “éligible conﬁ_ﬁct participants,” as that term is deﬁngd in th_é_-'

Act. See Section 1a(12)(A)(xi) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § la(12)(A)xi) (2006) (an



“eligible contract participant,” as relevant here, is an entity that has total assets |
exceeding $10 million or an individual with total assets in excess of (i) $10
niiilion, or (ii) $5 millioﬁ and who enters the nansﬁction “to manage the risk
-associated with an asset owned or liability incurfed, or reasonably likely to be
incurred, by the individual™). |
- 18. Patrick Rakotonanahary is an individual who mamtams an adciress_ in
" Punta Gorda, Florida. Rakdtonénahaxy holds himself out as the President of
. Cyber.' Rakotonaﬁaha’ry is not a financial institution, registéred broker dealer, |
insurance company, financial holding company, or investment bank holding
company, and is nét an associat_ed.person of such entities. Rakotonaﬁalxa:y has
| n_evér been registered w1th the Commiséiqn in any ?:apacity and is nota member of
a futures éssdciatidn registered under the Act; _
| 1V,
FACTS

Defendants Fraudulently Solicited Individuals to
~ Trade Foreign Currency Contracts '

19. During the Relevant Périodr, Defendants, directly and through'their
ofﬁéers, employees and agents, fraudulently solicited members of the general

public for the pu;ported'pu:pose of trading off-exchange forex.



| 20. Defendants, directly and through others, solicited individuals through
 direct solicitations, word-of-mouth, and a written solicitation.
21. - Rakotonanahary is Cyber’s President and Chief Executive Officer.
Rakdtonanahary soiicjted a nmﬁber of clients directly and through others, executed.
| agreements with clienfs in the name of Cyber, communicated with Cyber clients
concerning their investments and redemptionsrrequests.,' and controlled Cyber’s
bank éccount.
22. Rakotonanahary not only knows of the fraud being perpetrated by
| .Cyber, he 1s running the fraudulent operation.
| 23. I.n nieetings with prospective clients, Ral;otonanahary- and others
| | | _exp_l_ained that Defen_da_nt# offered a “Promissory Program” in Which lC'yber clién_ts
'-woﬁld loan funds to Cyber énd that Defendants would use those funds to trade
forex. - |
' 24. Cyber clients ex?cuted “loan agreements” with Rakotonanahary and
B | Rakotonanahm signed the agreements oﬁ behalf of Cyber. |
| | 25.- Cyber clients were instructed to sén& their investment funds via wire
.7 to Cyber’s bank account,
26, Défendants also promised to return to Cyber clients their pﬂncipa] |

investments after 52 weeks of interest payrhents and represented to Cyber clients



7 that they could fequest repayment of their principal at any time prior to the 52-
week 'per-iod. |
27. Among other things, Defendants knowingly made the. following
' misrepresentatibns of material facts while soiiciting members of the general public:
* Promising weekly and/or monthly returns of from 4 to 10%' knowing
that they lacked the.. funds to make these payments and to repay
_ princ;ipal; |
| e Representing to Cyber clients thét tﬁese returns were based oﬁ '
Cyber’s profitable fofex trading;
. Claiming that Cyber had never lost any capital except for “one
[p_eﬁod] seven years ago when déveloping our.curr_ent system.” -'
28. For exa:ﬂ;ile, Rakotonanahary told at least one pro#pective client that he
had ‘de\?eloped a forex trading system that had never lost money and that he was
- able tb produce between 6 and 10% weekly refurﬁs for Cyber clients using his
proprietary system. This statement waé false.
29, M6ng other things, Defendants also failéd to disclose to prospective
and éxisting Cyber g\:lienf:s: |

¢ That Defendants lacked sufficient funds to pay clients 4 to 10%;



¢ . That the “interest paymehts;’ prﬁvided by Cybcr to clients came
from Cyber clients’ investments and not from Cyber’s forex -
- trading;’ |
. | The risks of trading forex; and
¢ Cyber’s forex trading losses.
30. Rakotonanahary has admitted that his representatlons to Cyber chents
regardmg his forex trading program were both embelhshed and exaggerated.
3l. Inor about August 2008, Defendants ceased_ making purported"‘mtefest
| ﬁayments” to a number of ijber clients that had invested with Cyber up to that
point; thereafier, Defendants fnadé purported partial repayments of principai to
| some Cyber clients, but not ofhers. |
32. From August 2008 to the presént, Defendants continued to -‘solicif funds
.- from members of the general publié for the pﬁrpose of forei trading,.
- 33, Most Cyber clients hgve not been repaid their total principal

investments despite repeated demands to Defendants to do so and such clients’

- entltlement to repayment

34 Defendants sent Cyber clients a letter dated November 26, 2008 and an
R é_ttachment in which Defendants represented that Cyber’s forex margin account

contained Cyber client funds totaling in excess of $8 million dollars.

10



'35. This sfatement was false because, as df November 26, 2008,
Defendants’ bank and trading accounts had a total balance of approximately
- $60,000.
~ 36. Cyber clients relied upon.the misrepresentationsl and omissions
described heréin in deciding to invest, reinvest and remain invested with
Defendants. | |
. 37. Rakotonanahary opened two checkin_g accounts in the name of Cyber
-for which Rakotonanahary and two-Cyber employees had siénatory authority.
38. Between December 2007 and the pfe_sent, millions of dollars in Cyber ‘.‘
client funds héve been wired into one of Cyber’s two bank accounts.
39. Defendants wired all “interest payments” to Cyber _élie_nt_s from that
same Cyber bank account. | | |
40. As of February 12, 2010, no ﬁ;nds rem#ined in either of Cyber’s bank
| ~ accounts, | |
.- 41. Rakotonanahary opened multiple forex trading a;:count's in the name of
- Cyber at a futures commission_merchént (“FCM”) registered with the Commission.
| 42, Cyber’s opening a.c.count documents ét the FCM state that the. forex

 transactions are leveraged and margined. -

Bl



43. Between January 2008 énd the pre_sent, a total of approximately
$1,864,000 was trans_ferred from Cyber’s bank account into Cyber’s forex trading
accounts.‘ | |

44. Funds deposited iﬁto Cybef’s forex trading accounts came from funds
* deposited by Cyber clients intb Cyber’s bank accouht. |

45. Of thos,e funds, approximately $814,806 was lost trading forex and
approximately $1,049,193 was transferred back to Cyber’s bank account.

46. Cybef’s trading accounts traded various curr_'ehcy pairs, including
Euro/U.S. -dollar, U.S. dollar/Japanese yen, and U.IS.,dollar/Canadian dollar.

o 47. Neither Defendants hor the FCM are financial institutidns, registered
broker dealers, insurance corhpénies_, 'ﬁnancial_hold_i-ng company, or investment
bank holding conipany, and are not an associ‘éted'person of such an entity.

48. Cyber’s trading éccounts were closed in or about October.2009 and no
" funds remain in those accounts. |
| | | -49. Cyber’s forex trading accounts have traded forex for or on behalf of

Cyber’s clients from January 2008 to October 2009 with the exception of February '_
| 20ﬁ9, when there was no forex trading activity.
50. T}ie Defendants traded', férex on a margined or leveraged basis in

Cyber’s forex trading accounts. |
12



51. The forex transactions coﬁducted by Defendants in Cyber’s forex
| trading aécounts neither résulted in delivery within two days nor creafed an
enforceable: obligation to deliver betweer-La seller and a buyer that had thc ability to
deliver and accepf delivery, respectively, in connection with their lines of business.
Rather, these forex contracts wefe offset without anyone making or taking delivery
of é_ctual currency (or facing an obligat'ion to do s0). |

52 Defendants misappropriated Cyber client funds by using Cyber élient
funds to pay earliér clients’ pﬁrported “interest péyments” and by usiﬁg Cyber
~ client funds for personal expenses and items without client_;(s’ authoﬁzaﬁon todoso.
| V.

~ VIOLATIONS OF THE COMMODITY EXCHANGE ACT
| COUNT ONE

VIOLATIONS OF SECTIONS 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C)
| AS AMENDED BY THE CRA:
FRAUD, MISAPPROPRIATION AND FALSE STATEMENTS .
IN CONNECTION WITH OFF-EXCHANGE FOREX TRANSACTIONS

53. Paragraphs 1 through 52 are re-allegéd and incérpo_rated herein.
54. Sections 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) oft_l.'.ne- Act as amended by the CRA, to be
' cod_i_ﬁed_ at 7 U.8.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(A)-(C), make it unlawful |

| for any person, in or in connection with ériy order to make, or

~ the making of, any contract of sale of any commodity for future

delivery, or other agreement, contract, or transaction subject to
paragraphs (1) and (2) of section 5a(g), that is made, ortobe

13



made, for or on behalf of, or with, any other person, other than

on or subject to the rules of a designated contract market — (A)

to cheat or defraud or attempt to cheat or defraud the other

- person; (B) wilifully to make or cause to be made to the other
person any false report or statement or willfully to enter or
cause to be entered for the other person any false record; [or]
(C) willfully to deceive or attempt to deceive the other person
by any means whatsoever in regard to any order or contract or
the disposition or execution of any order or contract, or in
regard to any act of agency performed, with respect to any order
or contract for or, in the case of paragraph (2), with the other
petson. '
© 55. Sections 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) of the Act as amended by the CRA apply to
| Defendants’ forex transactions, agreements or contracts. Section 2(c)(2)(C)(iv) of
‘the Act as amended by the CRA, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. § 2(c)2XC)(iv).
56. By the conduct alleged herein, Defendants cheated or defrauded or
‘attempted to cheat or defraud other persons and wilifully_ deceived or attempted to
" deceive other persons in connection with offering of, or entéring into the margined
or Jeveraged foreign currency transactions alleged herein, for or on behalf of such
persons, by fraudulently soliciting prospective and existing clients, by making

: ma{erial misrepl_‘esentations and omissions, incIuding but not limited to, promising
weekly and/or monthly returns of from 4 to 10%, knowing that they lacked the

- funds to make thése payments, falsely representing to clients that these retﬁms

~were based on profitable forex trading, failing to inform clients that their returns

: were paid from the client’s own funds and/or the funds deposited by other clients,

14



falsely claifning that fhéy 'had.not lost moﬁey trading forex in seven years, and
7 | failing to adequately :'iiscl.os'e the risks of trading forex, all in violation.of Sections
'4b(a)(2)(A) and (C) of the Act as amended by thé CRA, to be codified at 7 U.S.C.
 §§ 6b(@)(2)(A) and (C).

57. Asset forth above, in or in 6onnectioﬁ with margined or leveraged
: fdreign éunency contracts, tranéactiqns or agreements made or to be made, foror -
on'behalf; of cher persons, D_efgndants willfully made or caused to be made false
reports or statements to clients or prospecti§e -clients by, 'ambng other thihgs,
knowingly providing clients fraudulent statements that misrepresented the balance
of clients’ ﬁmdé,_ in violation of Section 4b(a)(2)(B) of the Act as amended by the
| CRA, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)2)(B).
- 58. Defendants engéged in the acts and practices de'scribed.above
- knowingly, willﬁllly or with reckless disregérd for fhe truth.. |

59. Rakotonaﬁahary controlled Cyber, an& did not act in good faith or
knowingly induced, directly or indirectly, the acts conétituting Cyber’s violations
_alleg_edr in this Court. Rakotonanahary is thereby liable for 'Cyberfs violations of
Sections .4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) of the Act as amended by the CRA, to be codified at |
7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(A)-(C), as a controlling person, pursuant to Section 13(b) "of

the Act, 7 US.C. § 13c(b) (2006).

15



60. Rakotonanahary was acting as an agent of Cyber when he violated the
 act, and, therefore, Cyber, as Rakotonanahary’s pr-incipel, is liable for
Rakotonanahary’s acts constituting violatiqns of Sections 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C). of the
Act as amended by the CRA, te be codified at 7 USC .§§ 6b(a)(2)(A)-(C),
pursuant to Section 2(a)(1)(B) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 2(a)(1j(B).(20065, and
" Regulation 1.2, 17CFR § 1.2 (2009). |

61. Each act of fraudulent solicitation end mlsappropnataon, including but
not hmlted to those speclﬁcally alleged herem is alleged as separate and distinct

vxolatlons of Sections 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) of the Act as amended by the CRA, to be

B cod:ﬁed at7U.S. C §§ 6b(a)(2)(A)~(C)

VL |
RELIEF REQUESTED
_' WI-IER.EFORE, the Plaintiffe respectfully request that this Court, as
authorized by Section 6c of the CEA, 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1 (2006), anci pursuant to its
own e_quiiable powers enter | | .
a) an order finding the Defendants violated Sections 4b(2)(2)(A)(C)
of the Act as amended by the CRA to be codlﬁed at7 US. C §§

6b(a)(2)(A) (C)

16



b) an order of preliminary injuhction prohibiting the Défendants from
engaging in conduct violative of Sections 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) of the
Act as amended by the CRA, to be codified at 7 US.C. §§
6b(a)(2)(A)-(C);

¢) an order of permanent injunétion enjoining Defendants and all
persons insofar as ﬂley are acting in the capacity of their agents,

' seryants, emplpyeés, success_oré, aésigns, and attorneys, and alI.
persohs'insofar as they are aé_tihg in active concert or parﬁcipation
with them who receive actual notice of such order by personal
service or otherwise, from engaging, directly br indirectly:

1 in .conduc.t..in violation of Sec.tibns 4b(a)(2)(A)-(C) of the
Act, as amended by the CRA, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. §§
Sb@RNANC) |

2. trading Qn or subject to the rules of any registered entity (és
that term is defined in Section 1a(29) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. §
1a(29) (2006); o |

3. entering_ intd ény transaétions involving commodity futures,
op‘tidns on commodity futures, cOmrﬁodity options (as that

termis defined in Reg_ulation 32.1(b_)(1), 17CFR. -

17



' §-32.1(b)(1) (2009)) (“I&:onunodify options™), and/or foreign
currency (as described in Sections 2(c)(2)(B) and
2(c)(2)(C)(i) of the Act as amended by the CRA, to be
codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 2(c)(2)(B) and 2(c)(2)(C)(i)) (“forex
contracts”) for their own personal account or for any account
in which they have a direct or indirect interest;

4. having ény cbmmodity futures, options on commodity
- futures, commodity options, :and/or forex contracts traded on
their behalf; | |
5. controlling or directing the trading for or on behalf of any
other ﬁe[sdn or entity, whether by power of .éttorney or

- otherwise, in any account involving co?nmodity futures,
options on commodity futures, cbmmodity options, and/or -
'fo.ré,x contraéts’; |

6. soliciting, rcceiving, or acceptihg any funds from any person
fof the purpose of purchasing or selling.any commodity
| ﬁxturés, options .6n commodify futures, commodity options,
~ and/or forex contracts; |

7 applying for registr_a'tion or claimin'g exemption from

18



| registration with the Cqmmission in any capacity, and
engagiﬁg in any activity requiring such registration or
exemption from registration with the Commission, exceptas
provided fof in Regulation 4.14(a)(9), 17 C.F.R. § 4.14(a)(9) "
(2009); |
8. acting as a principal (as that term is defined in Reg_ulation
3.1(a), i? C.F.R. § 3.1(a) (2009)), agent or any other officer
or employee of any person registered, exempted from
 registration or required to be registered with the
Commission, except as provided for in Regulation
4.14(a)(9), 17 CFR. § 4.14(a)(9) (2009);
~ d) an order directing thé Defendants to dis'go'rge., pursuant to such
| procedlife as the Court may order,' all ill-gotteh gains and/ér
| benefits received from the écts or practices that constitute -
violatilons_ of the Act, as described herein, and in_tefest thereon from
the date of such violéﬁons;
€) an érder directiné the Defendants to make full réstitution,
including post-judgment interest, to e\?éry ciient whos;a funds were

received as a result of acts and practices _ﬂ1at_ constituted violations

19



of the Act, described herein, and interest'rthereon from the date of
such violations;
| f) an order directfng the Defendants to each pay a civii monetary
- penalty of not more than the highér of $140,000 for each violation
- of the Act committed on or after October 23, 2008, or $'130,00_0 for
each violation of the Act occurring between October 23, 2004 and
chober 22, 2008 or triple the monetary gain to the Defendants,
plus po.st-judgmentrintercst; |
- g) Enter an order of preliminary injuncﬁon _reSn'aining Defendants |
| and all persons .in'sofar as they are acting in the capacity of |
__Defer_idantS’ aéénts, servants, successors, employees, assigns, and
attoi'neys, and all persons inéofar as they are acting in active
concert or participation with them who receive actual noﬁce of
such order by pefs"onal service or othérwise, from diré_ctly or
indireétly: | | |
(aa) Destrb)?ing, mutilating, erasing, altering, concealing, or
disposing of, in any manner, directly or indirectly, any

documents that relate to the business practlces or business
fmances of Defendants; and

(bb)  Transferring, selling, alienating, liquidating, encumbering,
- pledging, leasing, loaning, assigning, concealing,
~ dissipating, converting, withdrawing, or otherwise

20



disposing of any assets, held by, under the control, or in
the name of any of the Defendants wherever located
including assets held outside the United States.

h) Enter an order of preliminary injlinction that Defendants shall

immediately deliver over to a Temporary Receiver or Monitor

- possession, custody and/or title of all assets owned beneficially or

otherwise, wherever situated of Defendants and information -
identifying the accounts, employees properties, or other assets or

obligations of Defendants;

Enter an order of preliminary injunction directing that Defendants

and any successors and/or agents thereof, provide the Commission -

and the Temporary Receiver or Monitor immediate and continuing

access to their bbqks, records, and other documents of Defendants,

agents of the Defendants, including, but not limited to, paper

: doi:uments, electronically stored data, tape recordings, and

computer disbs,_ wherever they may be situated and whether they

arein the possession of Defendants or others, and to-copy said

- documents, data and records, either on or off the premises where

they may be sitﬁated; -
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j) Enter an order of preliminary injunction directing that Defendants

make an accounting fo the Cdmmissibn and the Temporary
| Receiver or Ménitor of all of their funds, documenfs and éssets
exceeding $250 in fair market value individually, both within and
outside the United States which are (1) titled in the name
individually or jointly .of Defendants; (2) held by any person or
entity, for the beneﬁt of Dgfendants; or (3) under suc_:_h Defendant's’
difect or indirect control whether jointly or singly;
" k) Enter an or_der of pr'c:lir_ni'nary injunction providing for the | )

appoinﬁnent of .a Temporary Receiver or Monitor; |

1) an order requiring Defendants to pay costs and fees as permitted by
28 US.C. §§ 1920 and 2412(a)(2) (2006); and |

m) such other and ﬁ.lrﬂlef .reinedial ancillary relief as the Court may
deem appropriate. |

Déted this Eﬁﬂay of March,

2010 . |
' Respectfully Submitted,

Eliiabeth C. Bren \C. Brepinan
Steven I. Ringer
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